


The Reading Aero Club Golden Anniversary

The Reading Aero Club has much to look
forward to as it enters its sixth decade of
uninterrupted existence. Our club is the
oldest continuously active flying club in the
United States. Though by no means the
largest of its kind, the organization has
maintained a unique status as a non-profit
corporation in which all members hold equal
shares and are eligible to participate in the
running of the club. Over the years, the basic
purpose of the club has remained the same,
*—--—-t0 encourage aviation in general, to
acquire, preserve and disseminate valuable
information and knowledge through books,
lectures and pamphlets on the subject of
aviation; to acquire, own and maintain aircraft,
hangers, club house and personal property for
the use of club members, and to promote the
safe use thereof in the interests of the pro-

tection of public and private property.” It is
in this same spirit that the club has endeavored
to set down in this history some of the back-
ground surrounding the early days of the club
and, incidentally, the development of aviation
in Reading since one cannot be described with-
out considering the other. This sketch is by no
means complete but we hope that it will be
sufficient to engender some interest in the early
days of aviation in Berks County.

Aviation came formally but modestly to Berks
County with the dedication in October 1927 of
Whander Field, just south of Leesport. The
field was the brainchild of John P. Wolfsinger,
Sr., who was the chairman of the Chamber of
Commerce aviation committee. At the time,



there were several groups involved in casting
about for an airport site; the Exchange Club
had an active committee and the Council of
Civic Clubs also initiated a study. It wasn't
until the mid 30’s that the groups finally got to-
gether for the purpose of providing Reading
with a large commercial airport. But, it was
Whander field that served the area in the mean-
time by being a focal point for the birth and in-
fancy of commercial aviation in Berks County.

Whander field was developed as a true com-
mnity project without any Federal or State
subsidy. It was quite modest by today’s
standards - a single, very short (about 1200
ft.) grass runway which was adequate for the
flying machines of the day. A swath of land
had simply been cleared of weeds and bushes
to provide the strip. It wasn’t even very level,
but had a small knoll at about the three-quarter
point that acted a bit like a launching ramp if
the airplane had attained an airspeed at which
it was inclined to fly by the time it arrived there.
The name of the field was formed by the first

letter of the last name of each of the men on the
Chamber of Commerce aviation committe who
immodestly decided to immortalize themselves:

W - John P. Wolfinger, Sr.
and Thomas A. Wilson

- Fred A. Howard

- Arthur Arrowsmith
- Hans W. Nolde
Harry Davis

Paul O. Edelman
R. K. G. Rice

A MO Z > x

In the days of Whander field, aviation was a
novelty and the “roaring twenties” in Leesport
meant a mini-airshow almost every Sunday.
The people would assemble early in the day to
spread out their blankets and consume a picnic
lunch while overhead there were demon-
strations by either a parachutist, wing-walker
or a thrilling stunt pilot. The entertainment
was secondary, of course, since the original
purpose of the field was to foster the develop-
ment of the commercial aspects of aviation. It




was at this time that Reading Airways was
formed, the first company in Pennsylvania to
receive a charter for commercial flying. Since
the application for a charter was the first to be
made in the state, the question arose at Harris-
burg whether or not the charter would have to
be approved by the Public Service Commission.
After nearly four months of hearings, the Com-
mission decided that its’ approval was neces-
sary in such cases, thus establishing a presedent
for the state.

Reading Airways was a very successful venture
during its early years, as reflected in the oper-
rating statement for the two month period from
June 1, 1928 to July 31, 1929. During that
period, the gross revenue from airplane opera-
tions amounted to $3,844.83. This revenue,
according to the statement, came from 539
sight-seeing flights, special flights, long-distance
flights, student courses and miscellaneous in-
struction. The airline offered the first com-
mercial air links between Reading and the
cities of New York and Pittsburgh, but sched-
ules were erratic and the westbound flight fre-

quently was terminated at Harrisburg due to
bad weather over the Allegheny mountains.

The year 1929 was especially unkind to com-
mercial aviation and Reading Airways fell on
hard times. Thereafter, Whander field became
available almost exclusively for the use of
private or “general aviation™ as it is known
today.

Even though Whander field was the first “of-
ficial” airport in the area, there were several
other fields around Reading which were visited
frequently by the hosts of barnstormers who
toured the country in the years following World
War I. Among these was Madeira field in Hyde
Park, the County Home field near Shillington
and a field not far from the Bingaman Street
Bridge and to the north of Lancaster Avenue.

It was at Whander field that a group of aviation
enthusiasts began to realize the benefits of joint
ownership of an airplane. From a purely
financial standpoint, an airplane to be used for



recreation was an unwise investment for all but
a few of the flyers or would-be fiyers who began
making the field their “weekend home”. The
advantages of joint ownership were seen to ex-
tend beyond dollars alone; a group having com-
mon interests could share amongst themselves
the rapidly expanding wealth of aeronautical
knowledge and everyone would benefit from
the experiences and talents of each individual.
Mr. Carl A. Reber, who had been associated
with the operations of Whander field, was in
the best position to form a group of joint own-
ers. Fourteen men formed the core of the
group with each contributing an equal amount
to a fund for the purchase of an airplane.
After studying the available choices and
noting the scarity of spare parts, they decided
to purchase two planes, one in good flying
condition, the other to be cannibalized as re-
quired. These first two aircraft were Curtis
Wright Juniors and were of the pusher type.
Resembling a modern amphibian airplane in
some respects, the single engine was mounted
above and behind the pilot on a frame over the
wing. The engine was a three cylinder radial

design made by Szekely which developed 45
horsepower at full throttle.

This particular engine had a reputation for
occasionally blowing a cylinder and throwing
rods but fortunately the worst never happened
to the engine in the group’s Junior, It's only
fault was that the excessive vibration of the
overhead mount sometimes caused the mount-
ing bolts to become loose. This tendency
was restricted by the application of several
wraps of baling wire, the security of which be-
came a part of the preflight checklist, It's minor
faults not withstanding, the Junior was truly a
“fun” airplane, its big 392 foot wingspan pro-
vided very short take-off runs and landing rolls,
a definite advantage in operating from the
fields of those days. With a price tag of $1490.,
the plane was comfortably within the reach of
the group.

After three years of informal operation, it was
decided that the group should be incorporated
into a more formal organization, and so in




March, 1932, the first meeting of the Reading
Aero Club was held. It took place in the oper-
ations office at Whander field and the first
order of business was the election of officers,
with the following named:

President - George B. Fisher
Vice-President - Carl A. Reber

Secretary - Samuel Celone
Treasurer - George Bennett

A committee was appointed to formulate a set
of by-laws, provide membership cards and to
design a club emblem. This committee was
chaired by Earl Savage with Sam Celone and
Carl Reber assisting him. Other members
present at the first meeting were Luther
Wenrich, Clarence Stein, Cleon Addis, Harry
Cook and Victor Ray. The original concept
of the club was that it would be developed
around “units”, a unit to consist of twelve
members who would have exclusive use of one
airplane, It was decided that after two more
members joined, the first unit would be com-
plete and a second would then be organized

for subsequent new members. Among other
topics at the first meeting were the admission of
“associate” members and the eventual organi-
zation of a girl’s group in the club to be direct-
ed by Mrs. Olive Hintz.

The club’s meeting room at the airport was
modest indeed, in fact, it was little more than a
shed, deserving the nickname, “The Chicken
Coop™ bestowed by the members. Even with
the oil heater turned up full, the members had
to bundle up warmly against the cold draft.
The field, however, was generally quite suitable
for the club and membership grew steadily
during the early years at Whander field. Three
years after the club started, membership had
grown to the point where more elbow room was
required than was available at Whander field.
So in 1935 the members decided to relocate to
the newly opened Madeira field, opposite the
Reading Fairgrounds, This location was more
convenient to the membership, most of whom
lived in Reading. Growth continued at a
steady pace and another airplane, a Travelair
biplane was purchased and the club members
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This picture of the Reading Aero Club membership was taken at Madeira Field, opposite the Reading Fair-
grounds, in 1935, when the club purchased a O X 5 powered travelair biplane. Left to right: Vernon Smit h,
Luther Wenrich, Gerhart Martin, Farl Savage, Ernest Tilmes, Theodore Schell, Clarence Rowe, Charles
Bickel, Grant Blimline, Chester Horst, George Bennett, Jack Heisler, Carl Hain and Arthur Holtzman.

Left to right: Harlan Boyer, Dean Wetzel, Jack Esterly, Ralph Nevel, Jerry Stichter, Harry Elder, Gil Morin,
Fred Behm, George Deffendall, Charlic Crosby, Bill Walsh, Paul Deltete, Brian Compton, Elva Runyeon,
George Connolly, fohn Lynch, Ernie Hartmaier, Don Tillison and Bob Beissel.
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Left to right: Bill Walsh, Secretary; Harry Elder, Out-
going Kin. Sec.; Fred Behm, Maintenance Director:
Bob Beissel, President; Charlic Crosby, Vice
President; Brian Compton, Safety Director; George
Connolly, Fin, Secretary; Ralph Nevel, Treasurer.

The Reading Aero Clubs oldest and longest
continuing member, Grant Blimline, on the day he
received his private pilot’s certificate — Oct. 5, 1932,

Bobbie Guss with the Club’s Aeronca, L.C. Bobby
passed away in 1981 during pre-flight in a Boeing
747.



set about to build their own hanger to reduce
rental costs. Not long afterwards, the oppor-
tunity arose to trade the Travelair for an
Aeronca on very favorable terms. Since the
Aeronca-lobby was more powerful than the
Travelair-lobby, the deal was consummated
and a tradition of airplane “horse-trading” was
established in the club. Evidence that this
tradition is still strong today can be seen when-
ever the club decides to trade-up to a newer or
better equipped airplane, an event which seems
to occur about every three years. It's a bit
like a family reunion where great uncles and
distant cousins of the club not heard from for
years suddenly appear, pass judgment on the
aircraft under consideration, and then return to
the corners of Berks County.

While at Madeira field, the members became
very endeared to their Aeronca and later de-
monstrated their loyalty to this sporty airplane
by owning eight different Aeronca’s at one time
or another. As membership in the club approa-
ched fifty flyers, Madeira field also became too
small and the club decided it was time to try

it's wings and build a nest of its own. Finding
an appropriate field took on an air of excite-
ment as members scoured the Reading area by
car and plane for a location close to the city,
reasonably priced and having fairly unobstruc-
ted appoaches. The site finally selected was a
compromise of all the above. Joel Boyer’s farm,
near Leinbach’s Hotel and about a mile north
of the present Reading Municipal Airport, had
a relatively flat strip of land comprising sixty
acres which looked suitable for a runway. Mr.
Boyer agreed to lease the land to the club and
in September of 1937, the members began con-
struction of the airstrip and hangers. By spring,
there stood seven hangers along a respectable-
length runway of twenty-four hundred feet
which had been hewn from the farm. The offi-
cial name became Berks Airport and it was one
of the prettier fields around after the area was
seeded and the ladies auxiliary had established
flower beds at several appropriate locations.

The Reading Aero Club was fortunate to have
had many dedicated flyers among its member-
ship, a fact which has no doubt contributed to




Reading Aero Club’s Earl Savage flies the first airmail
out of Reading with the good wishes of Mayor [.
Henry Stump — October, 1937. Left to right are:
Walter Ringler, Andrew Bower?, Mayor J. Henry
Stump and Larl Savage.

Reading Aero Club Officers, 1941 — Front row from
left to right: Clarence Rowe, Secretary; Lee Fisen-
hauer, President; Orville Becker, Treasurer. Back row,
standing: Arthur Holtzman, Ben Bohrer and Hap
Gensemer.

1953 Officers & Directors:
Top row, left to right: C. Rathman, Director; H. Gen-
semer, Director; S. Folk, Director; H. Landis, Direc-
tor; G. Blimline, Director. Bottom row: L. Jenkins,
Treasurer; E. Legler, President; F. Bachman, Secre-
tary.
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the club’s longevity. Earl Savage, one of the
founding members of the club, is credited with
the first air mail flight out of Reading in Oc-
tober, 1937.

Probably the most famous of Berks County
aviation pioneers was Clifton O. Hadley who
was presented with a life membership in the
club at a dinner in his honor in March 1940.
Hadley operated a custom-made furniture busi-
ness on N. 9th St. in Reading but his first love
was aviation. In 1910, only seven years after
the Wright Brother's airplane lifted off and
traveled the great distance of 852 feet, Mr.
Hadley began flying in an airplane he had de-
signed and built himself. A unique feature of
the plane was a “Gate Control” for varying the
pitch attitude. Invented by Mr. Hadley, it
actually resembled a gate jutting out several
feet in front of the pilot who grasped the con-
trol bar firmly with both hands while his feet
controlled the wing-warping cables which
banked the craft. Hadley later became Aero-
nautical advisor to the Reading Airport Com-
mission and contributed several ideas to the

10

layout of the Reading Municipal Airport. He
maintained an active interest in the club and
was credited with being a major contributor
to the success of the club in those early days.

In the after-dinner speech, Mr. Hadley praised
the members for their effort in developing
Berks Airport by “turning a mud hole into an
airport”. He remarked that when the club was
organized, some other members of the aviation
community predicted that the club would be
composed of an “outlaw group of pilots”, but
that experience had proven their prophesy to
be inaccurate. Instead, through the cooper-
ative plan of the club, it was posisble for the
average man to enjoy the benefits of private
flying. at reasonable cost and to be associated
with a group of like-minded individuals who
could help each other keep up to date on many
facets of a fascinating interest.

Perhaps the initial suspicion of the club was
based on a fear of “cut-rate” competition; such
a notion the club has hopefully been able to
dispel among local fixed base operators. Then,



as now, the club’s charter as a non-profit organ-

ization precludes it from engaging in sales or
maintenance. The club does own and

operate aircraft but, the entire expense of
operation and maintenance becomes income
to a fixed base operator. Thus, the growth
and success of the club is beneficial not
only to the club, but also to the commercial
operators in the area.

By the time America became involved in World
War II, the Reading Municipal Airport was a
reality. The official dedication took place on
the weekend of Oct. 7 and 8, 1939 and was a
momentous occasion for aviation enthusiasts
of the Reading area. Several Reading Aero
Club members served on the dedication com-
mittee. Among others, there were Mr, Hadley,
Harold O. Landis, Clarence Rowe, Earl Savage
and Paul Wenrich. Reading pulled out the
stops by providing the public with an airshow
that attracted and thrilled thousands. The
program was opened with an hour-long band
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concert by the Reading Federal Band under the
direction of Frank L. Diefenderfer. Then the
Mayor’s official party arrived in an American
Airlines’ Flagship and a United Airlines’ Main-
liner. They were in turn followed by a reserve
squadron of United States Navy planes. After
a brief address by Mayor J. Henry Stump, the
program got underway with ten spectacular
“acts”, First there was a delayed parachute
drop which elicited thousands of “gasps” as

Jack Huber waited until he was perilously close
to destruction before pulling the rip cord. Then
came the usual assortment of aerial antics by
famous stunt pilots of the day. A 1910 Curtis
Pusher was put through its paces; there were
demonstrations in a Piper Cub and smoke aero-

batics by Mike Murphy, Roscoe Turner show-
ed the crowd how to execute racing turns, Miss
Bobby Lupton performed what was billed as
“Lady Aerobatics” and Earl Eckel did gyra-
tions in an autogiro. The finale was the “Bat-
wing Parachute - Human Bird” in which Earl
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Stine floated down on target to an appointed
spot on the airport.

The club welcomed the opening of the Munici-
pal Airport; its convenience to club head-
quarters at Berks Airport (only a mile away)
made it easy to obtain maintenance from the
commercial operations which were starting up
at the field. But, the handwriting was on the
wall with regard to the long-term future of
Berks Airport.

When the war broke out, there were people in
the military who suggested that it would be
convenient to close Berks Airport to allow un-
obstructed operations by army and air national
guard aircraft. It was only the voice of a strong
supporter, and then president of the club,
Theodore “Hap” Gensemer, who was able to
get a compromise worked out whereby club
members could still use Berks Airport by stay-
ing within the confines of an arrival and depart-
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Bob & Cathy Beissel the day Bob got his private pilot
certificate, June, 1975.

In the foreground, Grant Blimline, George Seyfert,
and Charles Rathman. Standing, . to r.; Hap Gense-
mer, Sid Hunter, Jack Long, Bill Weinerth, Russell
Printz, and Lynn Jenkins, with club’s Cessna 172.

Joseph Bertsch left, and Bill Weinerth washing the
Aeronca Champ.
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Brian Compton joined R.A.C. in 1976 and logged 100 Sl :
quick hours to apply to a commercial certificate in Aeronca K. with Hap Gensemer
our aerobatic Citabria.




ure corridor. The club rolls were at the time
drastically reduced due to the enlistment in the
service of many of the active members and it
was felt that the closing of Berks Airport could
have been a mortal blow to the club. Members
who remained in the Reading area throughout
the conflict were busy in Civil Air Patrol work
and several pilots who later moved into military
aviation were trained in club aircraft. Mr. Carl
Reber, the first Vice-President of the club, flew
CAP missions along the Eastern coast. The
aircraft used were single-engine Fairchilds and
Stinsons and the pilots were charged with
tracking down enemy submarines. The real
hazard of the job was compounded by the
nature of the flights; up to one hundred fifty
miles from shore in single engine aircraft
weighted down with fifty pound bombs and
depth charges which imposed severe limitations
on the quantity of gas that could be safely
carried,

Except for an occasional cancellation due to a
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statewide blackout, the club continued with its
regular meetings throughout the wartime
period. Dues were doubled - to two dollars per
month - to pay the salary of a full-time guard
for the aircraft. In 1943, an all-girls flying
club based at Madeira field, called the “Flying
Ten Club™ began negotiating with the officers
of the Reading Aero Club for group member-
ship. At first, RAC members were hesitant
about accepting the girl’s but since the ladies
had a Taylorcraft airplane in reasonable good
shape, it was decided to accept them since
their plane would make a worthy addition to
the growing fleet of the club,

After the war, the club grew rapidly and by
1946 it had 100 members ranging in age from
16 to 60 years old. Berks Airport continued
to grow also and the seven airplanes belonging
to the club were sheltered in two hangers re-
served exclusively for club use. The squadron
consisted of two Aeronca trainers, two Aeronca
LC’s, an Aeronca Chief, a Taylorcraft and a
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Fairchild PT-19. The aircraft were all in good
condition and the club enjoyed a solvency aided
by a bank balance in September, 1946 of
$3081.

Until March, 1946, there was no system of pre-
scheduling aircraft for a specific members’ use;
the people would simply come out to the air-
port when they wished to fly and would take
whichever plane was available. Eventually,
this practice became too inconvenient and
sign-up sheets were established so that mem-
bers could choose specific airplanes for their

use at specific times.

Over the next few years, the employment
picture brightened and the post-war expansion
of the economy enabled many members to buy
their own airplanes, Others began to raise
families and found that the baby-boom had a
direct impact on their flying budget, Con-
sequently, membership in the club declined
slightly. To make it easier for the club to gain
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new members, a new method of purchasing
memberships, then becoming quite popular and
known as the “time-payment” plan, was initi-
ated for a trial period. The plan consisted of
a fifty dollar down payment and $8.34 per
month until the balance was paid.

In 1950, the club acquired its first 4-place air-
plane, a Stinson Station Wagon for which the
rate was set at $7.50 per hour. It was such a
popular plane for family rides that the directors
recommended a three hour limit for an indi-
vidual pilots’ use on a Sunday.

Throughout the 1950’s and early 1960's, the
club maintained and improved its quarters at
Berks Airport and the membership hovered
around 80 throughout the period.

The field was a good place to maintain pilot
proficiency in short field take-off and landing
techniques; especially on a hot summer day
with a full load in the plane. Disadvantages



The club observed its 30th anniversary at a dinner in
the Reading Municipal Airport Terminal. From left to
right are: Grant A, Blimbline, a member for 29 years,
Charles G. Rathman, President; Harold €. Landis.
Vice President; Calvin F. Schreffler, Secretary and
Nevin B. Smith, Treasurer. A large cake resembling an
airport, with model airplancs and covered with
flowers was the centerpiece. Mrs, Clyde Runyeon
served on the dinner commiltee, .
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Rather Be Flying

Marquis C. J. Markel, seated, of Reading R.D. 2, chats
with officials of the Reading Aero Club during its
42nd anniversary banquet Thursday night in Stoke-
say Castle, Standing, left to right, are Grant S. Blim-
line, the oldest director of the Reading Aero Club:

Reading Aero Club’s current Board of Directors. Left 16 Lee [. Eisenhauer, club vice president;and R. Harding
to right: Chairman Grant Blimline; Maintenance Di- Breithaupt, vice president of Reading Aviation
rector Fred Behm; Safety Director Brian Compton; Service and banquet speaker. Mr. Markel, at 73, has

Vance Rutter, Bob Keith. 51 years of flying experience. — Eagle Photo



were that the grass had to be kept trimmed in
the summer and a lot of the crystal-clear winter
flying could not be done when hanger doors
were snow-drifted shut, These factors, com-
bined with the prospect that the field would
soon become the site for an industrial deve-
lopment, caused the club to seek quarters else-
where.

On April 13, 1965, the club appointed a com-
mittee to investigate leasing a space at the
Municipal Airport. The committee met with
members of the airport authority and indicated
to them that the club would like to occupy a
permanent place at the airport. After receiving
the approval of the authority, the club entered
into negotiations with the Reading Aviation
Service, Inc., to lease a meeting room from
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them. A suitable building was located at the
west ramp of the field adjacent to the hanger
where the club today keeps its’ airplanes.
In 1980 an extensive renovation project in
the clubhouse including insulation, dry wall
and paneling was initiated and completed
entirely by the membership.

The level of sophistication in private flying has
increased enormously in the last fifty years,
with the most significant changes occuring
over the last thirty. Where the club could oper-
ate five orsix basicaircraft in 1952, which were
equipped with little more than “needle, ball and
airspeed instruments”, today the club operates
two well-equipped Piper Cherokee airplanes.
Each is 4-place and each is fitted out with a va-
riety of electronic equipment to allow members
not only to operate in and out of our larger air-
ports but to have available to them equipment



which is advanced enough to allow them to
fly under instrument flight rules.

This increased level of sophistication in general
aviation aircraft and the higher levels of pilot
proficiency required go hand-in-hand with the
development of more modern facilities in all
phases of aviation. The pilot of 1932 was con-
tent to make patterns above Whander field for
an hour or two on a sunny weekend. In con-
trast, today’s private pilot may go up on a
weekend to practice but his practice may now
include making instrument approaches or flying
“under the hood” while a fellow pilot keeps
watch. The purpose is a practical one, to allow
him to take the family on a weekend vacation
several hundred miles away and be reasonably
confident of not being “weathered in”, or to
simply build his own confidence in aircraft
handling and thereby get much greater satis-
faction from an interest which is already satis-
fying and most definitely habit-forming.
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Club’s Airplanes 1932 - 1982

Two Curtis Wright Juniors, one in flying con-
dition, one for parts, these airplanes were of
two place, powered by a 45 H.P. Szekely radial
engine. NC 12667

NC 11859
One Travelair, this airplane is a three place bi-
plane 90 H.P. O.X. 5§ water cooled engine.

One Aeronca K. two place monoplane trainer
type airplane seating fore and aft high wing. N34405

Two Aecronca L.C.'s low wing design, this air-
plane was a side by side two place.

One Taylor-craft two place side by side 55 H.P.
engire high wing.

One Aeronca Chief side by side two place 75
H.P. engine high wing.

One Aeronca trainer two place fore and aft 65
H.P. engine high wing. N83617

Two Aeronca trainers two place fore and aft
65 H.P. engines high wing.

One Aeronca Chief side by side two place 65
H.P. engine high wing.

One Stinson Voyager four place powered by
165 H.P. engine high wing. N9745K

One Fairchild P. T. 19 airplane (a two
place trainer powered by 175 H.P. engine low
wing).
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Two Swift side by side two place sport-type air-
planes powered by 125 H.P. engine low-wing.
One Cessna 140 side by side two place sport
type airplane powered by 90 H.P. engine high
wing. N9469A

One Cessna 172 four place airplane powered
by 145 H.P. engine high wing. N8661B

One Cessna 150 two place side by side powered
by 100 H.P. engine high wing. N6545T

One Cessna Sky Hawk four place powered by
145 H.P. engine high wing. N8691U

One Cessna 182 four place high wing 230 H.P.
engine, N2789G

One Cherokee 140 two place side by side low
wing design powered by 140 H.P. engine. N6311W

One Cherokee 180 four place low wing design
powered by 180 H.P. engine. = N8890J]

One Cherokee 140 four place low wing design
powered by 150 H.P. engine. N3511U

One Cherokee 180 four place low wing design
powered by 180 H.P. engine. N6354)

One Citabria 7ECA high wing aerobatic
N36770

One Cherokee 180 N15861









George B. Fisher
Lee Eisenhauer
Ben Bohrer
Theodore Gensemer
Ben Bohrer

Nevin Smith

R. Moyer

Nevin Smith
Edgar Legler
Grant Blimline
Charles Rathman
Nevin Smith

Reading Aero Club Presidents

1932- 1982
1932 Walter Loose
1941 Charles Rathman
1942 B. Franklin Reber, Jr.
1943-46 William Yarling
1947-48 Charles Obold
1949-50 Charles Crosby
1951 Thomas McMahon
1952 Charlie Crosby
1953-54 Harlan (Scotty) Boyer
1955-57 Jack Kerber
1958 Charlie Crosby
1959 Donald Tillison
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Bob Beissel

1960-61
1962-63
1964-65
1966

1967-68
1969-70

1971-72
1973-74

1975-

1976-1977
1978-1979

1980- (Resigned)
1980-Present




Spot Landing Contest 1978




CONGRATULATIONS TO THE READING AERO CLUB
ON 50 YEARS OF CONTINUOUS OPERATION

@ Western Electric

READING WORKS
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° Competitive
spirit.

It’s the
American way!

Competition is a healthy means of It's that same competitive spirit that makes
fostering achievement and striving for a American Bank strive to give our customers
standard of excellence. That's why you'll find the best we can.

American Bank's support behind many So here's to competitive spirit. It's the
athletic events and teams in the area. American Bank advantage.

Competition is also healthy in business.

Good bankers. Good neighbors.

AMERICAN
BANK

ST SRR B M fO
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Compliments
of

@ | Gilbert/Commonwealth

"\ i / ENGINEERS/CONSULTANTS Reading,PA/Jackson,M)
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Get the KEY
at Hamilton
Bank.

Unlock the bank
of tomorrow, today,

Offices keated throughout Barks, Chester, Dauphin, Lancaster, Lebaron and York Counbes

PERFORMANGE  MOTORS

T0

Y O

TA

3333 PENN AVE.

678-3425

WEST LAWN, PA.



KEEPING
BERKS COUNTY
ON THE ROAD

We specialize in construction of roads,
driveways, tennis courts, etc. . . and repaving. No
job is too small. Phone 678-3179; in Pottstown 323-6737.

CUSTOMER PICKUP OF DRIVEWAY MATERIALS AVAILABLE

E.J. BRENEMAN, InC.

STATE HILL ROAD/P, O. BOX 2126/SINKING SPRING, PA 19608
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We'd like to
introduce you to

the blggest httle bank

BOYERTOWN BALLY DOUGLASSVILLE JACKSONWALD

in Reading.

NATIONAL BANK
R4 or BOYERTOWN

Nobady knows Berks County better than the
National Bank of Boyertown. We're a full
service community bank that has been actively
serving Berks Countians for 106 years. Our
eleven banking offices cover Eastern Berks
and Western Montgomery Counties. The
downtown Reading office, at Sixth and Court,
is across from the courthouse. Now Reading
can benefit from our unique style of small town
banking where we place importance on per-
sonal service. 106 years of banking experi-
ence has taught us a lot. .. especially about
pleasing customers. For that something extra
in financial services, bank with us . ., we care!

MERTZTOWN NEWHANOVER OLEY POTTSTOWN
READING RED HILL

Member FDIC

S e A e e s ey s




Professional Insurance Service

M A Full Service Agency Since 1927
MAST&MOYER, INC.

An Insurance Agency committed M % W

to Berks County since 1927 RUGS AND CARPETS

A name that is recognized with
quality, integrity and

professionalism . . . f Wt
providing service for Commercial ¢ W/@y 6(14(4

Industrial and Personal Lines
539 PENN AVE., WEST READING, PA. 19611

SECOND LEVEL OF
PENN SQUARE CENTER BUILDING

374-4893
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MTE‘ PHONE: 582-3439
4

BUILDING MATERIALS

DRYWALL SPECIALIST
GILLES J. MORIN

235 D SPRUCE AVE.
RD. 2
BIRDSBORO, PA. 19605

6?QR Ting '\
ba' sk
GoODS =
WIEST'S SPORTING GOODS INC.

Complete Ski Dept.

HOURS
Mon. - Tues. - Wed. 9to 6
Thurs-Fri, - 9 to 9 — Sat, 9 to 5:30

450 Penn Avenue
West Reading, PA 19611

Phone 373-2500 or 373-:0383




THE INN PLACE TO GO

Reading Motor Inn Welcomes
the Reading Aero Club

Featuring:

Fine Food, Cocktails, and Friendship
Meeting and Banquet Facilities for 5 to 500
214 Guest Rooms all with Free HBO
800 Reservation System
in PA 1-800-422-8572
1—-800—-345-4023

Reading Motor'Inn,

Park Road and Warren St. By-Pass Wyemissing. PA 19610
(215) 372-7811

NICK MOOTIONS

SAVH.

We're ready to help you with all your travel needs
— Caribbean Island Vacations
— European Tours
~ Dinner Theatre Motorcoach Tours
— World’s Fair Motorcoach Tours
— Tropicana Casino Day Trips
(Sun., - Mon. - Wed. - Fri.)

— Atlantic City Name Entertainment Programs
— Motorcoach programs can be made
especially for groups...

Need to charter a bus...Give us a call
— Or any other travel plans you may have

Antietam Valley Shopping Center
779-4220



PEANUT BAR

OUR VERY BEST WISHES

ON YOUR 50th ANNIVERSARY

BANK OF

PENNSYIVANIA

Meamber FODIC




HOFBRAU

5th & CHERRY STS.
READING'S OLDEST SALOON

READING AREA
COMMUNITY COLLEGE
CONGRATULATES

ON ITS 50TH ANNIVERSARY 373-9123
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E Auich Colony Motor Iun a

and Antique Adrplane Restanrant

READING AERO CLUB

Congratulations on 40 years

of service to aviation ROUTE 422 EAST
Junction West Shore By-Pasy
779-2345 4635 PERKIOMEN AY.

REIFFTON. PA.

Congratulations to THE READING AERO CLUB

on its 50th Anniversary

w IS

READING AVIATION SERVICE, INC.

Municipal Airport
Reading, Pa.
375-8351




Congratulations

Over
46 Years

to =
Reading Aero Club '
on its 50th Anniversary .

I

QUALITY IS WHERE IT ALL BEGINS!
ROBERT M. KEITH, JR. CFII

» Artwork | « Business Forms

« Layout « Brochures
+ Composition = Booklets
« Plate Making + Letterheads
« Binding « Bulletins

Specializing in Instrument « Collating « Envelopes
+ Addressing . Flyers. bl
« Mailing » Wedding Invitations

and Commercial Instruction 101 SOUTH FIRST AVENUE o WEST READING, PENNSYLVANIA 19611 o PHONE 375-8581

CONGRATULATIONS!

Cap Aviation Inc.

P.O. Box 3037

Reading Municipal Airport
Reading, PA 19604
Telephone (215) 376-5447

SALES - MAINTENANCE - CHARTER - FLIGHT SCHOOL
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TO THE READING AERO CLUB
THANKS!

BRIAN T. COMPTON
PROFESSIONAL PILOT

Far 135 Air Taxi Captain
Far 141 Chief Flight Instructor

Phone 215—372-6054

CONGRATULATIONS
READING AERO CLUB

ARC - KING - NARCO
Sales -« Service and Installation

Eslinger Avionics, Inc.
LYNN ESLINGER

TOM MASANO INC.
Lincoln-Mercury Sales and Service
New Cars-Used Cars-Service-Parts
“At the sign of the cat”
Mercedes—Benz Sales & Service
International Famous Motor Cars
For Domestic and European Delivery

815 Lancaster Ave., Reading
Phone 777-6587
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READING MUNICIPAL AIRPORT F.A.A, APPROVED
R.D, 2, BOX 639D REPAIR STATION 103-14
READING, PA. 19605 215-375-0634
(216} 779-2366
OFFICE

HIESTER'S DRIVEWAY SERVICE

BOX 6070, WYOMISSING, PA. 19610
ASPHALT PAVYING — LANDSCAPING

(215) 926-5798 We Do All Types of Paving

KEN BEISSEL No Job Is Too Big Or Too Small

Free Estimates




(215) 3739534 m

Rabph's Amoco Sevvice

STATE INSPECTION TUNEUP

RALPH F DROMIE ZND & WASHINGTON STS
Owner READING PA 19601

| BINION Fiisin G

828 Penn Street, Farmers-Kissinger Market
Reading, PA 19602
Phone: 376-9700

HOURS
Monday, Tuesday, Thursday, Friday 9 AM. to 6 P.M.
Wednesday 9 AM. to 3 P.M. Saturday 9 A.M. to 1:30 P.M.

Congratulations

Dy Cosd R Gt

%Zﬁo/-m(mt

g‘té&/ﬁ‘az Pide ﬂ‘&’(aﬂ/
RD #s Bz 2494
Bindidore, P 19508
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“Congratulations to the Club!"

DICK’S AUTO PARTS

Large Invenlory Parts & Accessories

1400 CARBON STREET
READING, PA 19601

Phone 375-3473




CONGRATULATIONS TO
READING AERO CLUB
ON ITS 50th ANNIVERSARY

GRANT BLIMLINE
Maytag Sales

621 Carsonia Ave., Pennside
Phone 779-6573

CONGRATULATIONS ON YOUR
50th ANNIVERSARY FROM
FELLOW CLUB MEMBER

HEIM'S FRUIT FARM
Robert R. Heim & Sons

Eggs — Fruit — Vegetables
Milk Products

Phone McKeansburg — 717-943-2572

THE EPISCOPAL CHURCH'S MINISTRY
in

Southern Schuylkill County

SAINT JAMES' CHURCH

SCHUYLKILL HAVEN, PENNA. 17972
ROBERT D, CARLYON, Recron

THE RECTOR, WARDENS, & VESTRY
CONGRATULATE THE
READING AERO CLUB

“60 YEARS OF FLYING"

CONGRATULATIONS ON YOUR

50th ANNIVERSARY

Ma-ﬂ e PHONE 374-2543
4 Shop

19 South Fifth Street Reading, Pa. 19602




BEHM. Frederick F.

BEISSEL, Robert C.

BERTAGNA, Dante F.

BLIMLINE, Grant

BOHRER, Ben (Honorary Member)
BOYER, Harlan L.[/Associate Member)
BROK, Robert D.

BROWN, Scott W./Associate Member)

CARLYON, Robert D.

COGAN, Bruce (Associate Member)
COMPTON, Brian T.

CONNOLLY, George A.

COOPER, Harold G.

CROSBY, Dottie

CROSBY, Charles H.

DEFFENDALL, George W.
DELTETE, (Clement) Paul

ECK, Theodore W.
ELDER, Harry E.
ENLOW, Carl R. (Associate Member)
ESTERLY, Jack W.

FENNELL, Dennis W,

HARTMAIER, Ernest W.
HEFFELFINGER, Jack

HEIM, Robert R,

HELLER, Richard G.

HICKS, James B.(Associate Member)

HIRSHLAND, Sydney D.(Associate Member)

HOYT, J. Curtis (Honorary Member)

KAUFFMAN, Paul 8,
KEITH, Robert M., Jr.

3310 Stoner Ave., St. Lawrence, Reading 19606
RD ff1, Box 308, Leesport 19533

RD #2, Bos 63, Birdsboro 19508

621 Carsonia Ave., Mt. Penn, Reading 19606
418 8. Kenyon Dr., Tucson, AZ 85710

1812 Van Reed Rd., Wyomissing 19610

209 Mayer St., Reading 19606

530 Vermont Ave., Apt. 1, Daytona Beach FL 32018

(3129 McKently St., Reading, 19605)

138 Overlook Ter., Deer Lake, RD #1,0rwigsburg 17961

431 West Greenway St., Fleetwood 19522

725 North 4th St., Reading 19601

1708 Golf Rd., Greenfields, Reading 19601
199 Bock St., Schuylkill Have 17972

RD. #3, Box 472, Reading 19606

RD #3, Box 472, Reading 19606

811 Warren St., Reading 19601
2109 Burkey Dr., Reading 19610

266 Lee Ave., Pottstown 19464

1327 Cleveland Ave., Wyomissing 19610
2 Lorane Rd., Reading, 19606

RD #1, Box 375, Leesport 19533

Rt. 61 & Memorial Dr., Schuylkill Haven 17972

RD #7024, Reading 19606

626 Lancaster Ave., Reading 19611

RD #1, New Ringgold 17960

RD #2, Box 267, Oley 19547

405 Devon Ter., Shillington 19607

101 Marshall Ave., West Wyomissing 19609
24 Jeffrey Rd., Reading, 19601

RD #2, Denver 17517
17 Wendy Road, Reading 19601
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HOME

779-7464
926-3605
582-4330
779-6573

678-3979
779-2716

(929-5549)

944-7348
372-6054
372-4995
717/385-1675
779-2471
779-2471

376-5043
678-4725

1-326-9367

374-8644
(Unlisted)

926-5634

717/385-4965

779-7634
373-8728
717/943-2535
987-6879
777-6094
678-8761
376~2487

1-267-5945
376-5083

WORK

568-3900 X190
779-6573

926=1706

375-8551
376-5447
929-7244

371-2778
929-7353

1-643-2000 X3215

929-7170
582-1541

921-2381 X264
678-8761

375-7851



LECLERC, Gerard
LEVENGOOD, Paul (Associate Member)
LYNCH, John W.

McMAHON, Thomas M.
MIDDLETON, Robert J.
MILLER, H. Roger
MORIN, Gilles J.

NAGLE, William H., Jr.

NASTASTAK, Peter J.

NEVEL, Ralph J.

NOLDE, Mrs. Frances (Honorary Member)

OBOLD, Charles E,
OWENS, Roy (Associate Member)

PERRY, Charles
PIKE, Robert C.

RATHMAN, Charles G./Associate Member)
RITTER, Michael C. {Associate Member)
ROSE, Vincent J. {Associate Member)
RUNYEON, Elva (Associate Member)
RUSS, Joseph

RUSSELL, Scott M.
RUTTER, Vance E.

SCHROEDER, JOHN V.

SMITH, David R. (Associate Member)
SNYDER, Wesley A.

STICHTER, Gerald J.

TILLISON, Donald G.

UMBENHAUER, Donald J.

WALSH, William F,.
WEINERTH, William H.
WETZEL, Dean G.

320 Summit St., West Reading, PA., 19611
RD #2, Boyertown 19512

1135 Belont Ave., Wyomissing 19610

1234 Wooderest Dr., Kenhorst, Reading 19607
RD #1, Box 82, Orwigsburg 17961

1125 Beaver Creek Rd., Fleetwood 19522
235-D Spruce Ave., RD {#2, Birdsboro 19508

617 Penn Ave., West Reading 19611
RD #3, Box 158, Boyertown 19512
726 East 6th St,, Birdsboro 19508

312 Amherst Ave., Reading 19609
410 Lawrence Ave., Lincoln Park, Reading 19609

811 Belmont Ave., Laureldale 19605
1900 Elder St., Reading 19604

135 Hill Ave., Birdsboro 19508

445 Oley St., Readiug, 19601

RD #7063, Reading 19606

1125 Amity St., Reading 19604

302-2 Gold Court, Springside Manor Apts., Shillington
19607

16 Nassau Circle, Flying Hills, Reading, 19607

6 Bluebird Dr., Wyomissing 19610

405 Carsonia Ave., Reading 19606

302 Telford Ave., West Lawn 19609

RD #3, Box 6, Oley 19547

307 Fisher Rd., Greenfields, Reading 19601

42 Par Drive, Flying Hills, Reading 19607

1113 Douglass St., Reading 19604

1035 Fox Run Rd., Reading 19606
4211 - 4th Ave., Temple 19560
205 S, Home Ave., Topton 19562

40

376-9868
689-5142
376=5257

777-2156

717/943-2334

682-2841
582-3439

374-9650
689-5019
582-8396

777-0721
777-4651

929-4692
373-3552

1-385-3123
373-6230
689-9302
375-7889
693-6410

777-0742
375-0633

779-5977
678-0726
987-3539
376-3238

7778641

372-0618

779-7094
929-1427
682-7866

929-7165
693-3151

373-6667

775-2600 X473

775-2600 X2593
929-8631

373-7260

376-8297
375-8551

929-7217

929-7181

374~-3151
929-7767

301/485-8700

926-4146

373-0303
375-8551
682-2194




BEHM. Frederick F.

BEISSEL, Robert C.

BERTAGNA, Dante F.

BLIMLINE, Grant

BOHRER, Ben (Honorary Member)
BOYER, Harlan L.[Associate Member)
BROK, Robert D.

BROWN, Scott W.(Associate Member)

CARLYON, Robert D.

COGAN, Bruce (Associate Member)
COMPTON, Brian T.

CONNOLLY, George A.

COOPER, Harold G.

CROSBY, Dottie

CROSBY, Charles H.

DEFFENDALL, George W.
DELTETE, (Clement) Paul

ECK, Thecodore W.
ELDER, Harry E.
ENLOW, Carl R. (Associate Member)
ESTERLY, Jack W.

FENNELL, Dennis W.

HARTMAIER, Ernest W.

EEFFELFINGER, Jack

HEIM, Robert R.

HELLER, Richard G.

HICKS, James B.{Associate Member)
HIRSHLAND, Sydney D.{Associate Member]
HOYT, J. Curtis (Honorary Member)

KAUFFMAN, Paul S.
KEITH, Robert M., Jr.

LECLERC, Gerard
LEVENGOOD, Paul {Associate Member)
LYNCH, John W.

McMAHON, Thomas M.
MIDDLETON, Robert J.
MILLER, H. Roger
MORIN, Gilles J.

NAGLE, William H., Jr.

NASTASIAK, Peter J.

NEVEL, Ralph J.

NOLDE, Mrs. Frances (Honorary Member)

OBOLD, Charles E.
OWENS, Roy (Associate Member)

PERRY, Charles
PIKE, Robert C.

RATHMAN, Charles G.[Associate Member)
RITTER, Michael C. (Associate Member]
ROSE, Vincent J. (Associate Member)
RUNYEON, Elva (Associate Member)
RUSS, Joseph

RUSSELL, Scott M.
RUTTER, Vance E.

SCHRCOEDER, JOHN W.

SMITH, David R. (Associate Member)
SNYDER, Wesley A.

STICHTER, Gerald J.

TILLISON, Donald G.

UMBENHAUER, Donald J.

HOME

WALSH, William F.
WEINERTH, William H.
WETZEL, Dean G.

J/jo=ovuo

WORK






